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VISION

To be a dynamic, profitable, growth oriented Company and to achieve
excellence through commitment, integrity, honesty and team work

MISSION

To increase consistently the value of the Company to its shareholders by
building up the Company on sound financial footings with better productivity,
excellence in quality and improved efficiency at lower operating costs without
compromising on our principles of ethics, integrity and professional standards

To achieve high returns on investments through continuous process of
improvement for the benefit of shareholders
To be a responsible employer and to develop and reward employees according

to their ability and performance.

Be a good corporate citizen
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty-eighth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company will be held at
the Registered Office of the Company 20 - K Gulberg II, Lahore on Saturday October 27, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. to transact the
following business:-

Ordinary Business
1 To confirm the minutes of Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on January 31, 2018.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 together
with Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon.

To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year 2018-19 and to fix their remuneration. The present Auditors M/s
Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafiq - Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible offered themselves for the
re-appointment.

Lahore Salman Farooq
October 5, 2018 (Company Secretary)

Notes:-

1 The share transfer books of the Company will remain close from October 23, 2018 to October 27, 2018 (BOTH
DAYS INCLUSIVE)

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend
the meeting and vote for him / her. Proxies in order to be effective must be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

Shareholders are required to immediately notify the Registrar of any change in their postal addresses.

Account holders and sub-account holders holding book entry securities in respect of the shares of the Company
in Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, who wish to attend the General Meeting are requested to
bring their original Computerized National Identity Cards for identification purpose.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors of D.S. Industries Limited is pleased to present the Company's Thirty-Eighth Annual Report which
includes the Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the Auditor's report thereon for the year ended
June 30, 2018.

Financial Results of the Company

During the year ended June 30, 2018 the Company has incurred gross loss of Rs. 15.604 million as compared to gross loss
of Rs. 55.598 million in the last year. Whereas Loss before taxation for the year was amounting to Rs. 43.837 million as
compared to Profit before taxation of Rs. 81.114 million in last year.

Dividend

In view of the liquidity problem due to negative cash flow from operating activities and available accumulated losses,
directors of your Company have proposed no divided for the year.

Book Closure

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration
from October 23, 2018 to October 27, 2018 (both days inclusive). Transfer received by our Shares Registrar, M/s THK
Associates (Pvt.) Limited - First Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S Karachi at the close of business on October 22, 2018 will be
considered to attend and vote at the meeting.

Pattern of Shareholding

The Statement of Pattern of Shareholding along with categories of shareholders of the Company as at June 30, 2018, and
Code of Corporate Governance are annexed with this report.

Operating and Financial Data
Operating and financial data with key ratios for the six years is annexed.
Future Outlook

The textile sector is a significant pillar of Pakistan's economy. From last few years, this sector has sufferred substantial
losses accross the board. Increased production cost, and dumping of indian yarn in local market had made it very difficult
for the textile industry to survive and compete in the market. However, recent steps taken by newly appointed Government
to support the textile sector will help Pakistan to compete in the region. Recent reduction in power cost will result in
reduction of production cost which will help the industry to regain and increase their international market share. The
management of the Company is also committed to run the affairs of the Company in profitable manner.

Number of Board Meetings Held

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year ended June 30, 2018 and the attendance of the directors
is as follows:

attendance
attendance
attendance
attendance
attendance
attendance
attendance
attendance

Mr. Pervez Ahmed Chief Executive
Mr. Ali Pervez Ahmed Director
Mr. Hassan Ibrahim Ahmed Director
Mr. Suleman Ahmed Director
Mr. Atta ur Rehman Director
Mr. Khawar Mahmud Director
Mr. Mazhar Pervaiz Malik Director
Mrs. Rukhsana Khalid Director

W Wwwwuou b~ oty
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Statement of Ethics & Business Practices

The Board has prepared and circulated the Statement of Ethics and Business Practices signed by every director and
employee of the Company as a token of acknowledgement of his/her understanding of the standards of conduct in relation
to everybody associated or dealing with the Company.

Auditors

The Auditors M/s Rehman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafig - Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for the
reappointment. The Audit Committee of the Board has recommended the reappointment of M/s Rehman Sarfaraz Rahim
Igbal Rafiq - Chartered Accountants as auditors for the financial year ending June 30, 2019.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company is in place and comprises the following members as required under the Code of
Corporate Governance.

Mr. Atta ur Rehman Chairman
Mr. Khawar Mahmud Member
Mr. Mazhar Pervaiz Malik Member

Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year ended June 30, 2018 as required by the Code of Corporate
Governance for review of quarterly & annual accounts and other related matters. The meeting was also attended by the
Chief Financial Officer, head of Internal Audit and External Auditors as and when it was required.

Code of Corporate Governance
Statement in Compliance to the Code of Corporate Governance

The Directors are pleased to confirm that the Company has made compliance of the provisions set out by the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan through the listing regulations of Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges as prescribed in
the Code of Corporate Governance and there is no material departure from the best practices as detailed in the listing
regulations.

1 The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present its state of affairs fairly, the result of
its operations, cash flows and change in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial
statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

The Company has incurred net loss of Rs. 75.782 million during the year and has accumulated losses of Rs. 760.318
million as at the balance sheet date. The current liabilities of the Company exceeds its current assets by Rs. 268.551
million. These factors may cast doubt about the entity's ability to continue as going concern. However, the
management is confident to obtain continuous support from the sponsoring directors and favorable negotiations with
lenders.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as defined in the listing
regulations.

8 Financial highlights for the last six years are annexed.
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Acknowledgement

The Board of directors would like to place on record their appreciation to the valued shareholders, bankers, the Securities
& Exchange Commission and to the management of Pakistan Stock Exchange for their valuable support, assistance and
guidance. The Board also express its appreciation to the staff and workers of the Company for their services, loyalty and
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For & on behalf of the Board
Lahore

October 5, 2018
Pervez Ahmed
Chief Executive
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

[ 2018 [ 2017 [ 2016 [ 2015 I 2014 [ 2013 |
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Sales 717,846,175 823,969,981 635,025,614 820,090,456 1,130,585,280 1,085,828,414
Cost of sales (733,450,702) (879,568,859) (694,770,844) (867,695,343)  (1,117,780,808) (922,982,731)

Gross Profit (15,604,527) (55,598,878) (59,745,230) (47,604,887) 12,804,472 162,845,683

Operating expenses:
- Selling & Distribution expenses (1,852,272) (2,474,395) (2,282,947) (2,718,422) (2,294,780) (5,961,460)
- Administrative & General expenses (29,132,885) (27,806,108) (21,356,090) (29,711,264) (39,044,110) (42,059,029)
- Other expenses (6,066,603) (16,796,430) (1,871,722) (21,010,741) (9,358,678) (4,323,136)

(37,051,760) (47,076,933) (25,510,759) (53,440,427) (50,697,568) (52,343,625)

(52,656,287) (102,675,811) (85,255,989) (101,045,314) (37,893,096) 110,502,058
Other income 14,195,755 171,623,638 81,029,382 237,040,996 1,239,342 1,364,786
Operating (Loss) / Profit (38,460,532) 68,947,827 (4,226,607) 135,995,682 (36,653,754) 111,866,844

Finance cost (9,677,409) (3,933,821) (1,458,056) (2,286,489) (2,675,550) (33,567,924)
(Impairment loss) / reversal of impairment

on investment in associates - net - - - (23,157,422) 19,568,789
Notional Income / (Notional Interest) 15,543,107 (26,638,748) 26,638,748
Share of net profit / (loss) of associated

companies (11,242,787) 16,100,595 (815,389) (20,370,674) 16,862,535 29,881,862

(Loss) / Profit before Taxation (43,837,621) 81,114,601 (33,138,800) 139,977,267 (45,624,191) 127,749,571

Taxation (31,945,213) (4,022,587) 49,668,989 27,908,971 (2,766,647) 14,278,522

Net (Loss) / Profit for the Year (75,782,834) 77,092,014 16,530,189 167,886,238 (48,390,838) 142,028,093

Dividend 0 0 0 0 0 0

Bonus

BALANCE SHEET

Share Capital 753,956,601 753,956,601 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000
Long term loans 82,745,085 151,563,805 596,917,258 678,939,561
Property, plant and equipment 478,921,989 510,776,302 544,306,154 398,938,588 436,192,675 437,429,417
Capaital work in progress 19,169,784
Current assets 104,292,967 71,518,695 88,456,586 85,981,512 114,164,666 160,902,382

Current liabilities 372,843,664 409,169,716 607,147,446 506,624,153 461,883,147 387,426,188

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Gross profit / (loss) ratio ( % ) (2.17)
Operating (loss) / profit ratio ( % ) (5.36)
Net profit / (loss) ratio ( % ) (10.56)
Profit / (Loss) earning per share (1.11)

Fixed assets turnover 1.50
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Statement of Compliance With Best
Practices of Code of Corporate Governance
For The Year Ended June 30, 2018

D.S Industries Limited ("the Company") has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 ("the Regulations") in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
Male : Six
Female : One

The composition of the Board of Directors ("the Board") is as follows:
Name of Director and Category

Independent Directors
- Mr. Mazhar Pervaiz Malik
- Mr. Khawar Mahmud

- Mr. Atta ur Rehman

Other Non-Executive Directors
- Mrs. Rukhsana Khalid

Executive Directors
- Mr. Pervez Ahmed

- Mr. Ali Pervez Ahmed
- Mr. Suleman Ahmed

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as director on more than five listed companies,
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable)

The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2017 ("the Act") and the
Regulations.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director elected by
the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the board.

The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Directors are well conversant with the Listing Regulations and legal requirements and as such are fully aware
of their duties and responsibilities. However none of directors of the Company have obtained any certification in
any Directors Training Program.

| 09 | D.S. INDUSTRIES LIMITED




Annual Report June 30, 2018

. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, including their
remuneration and term and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations.

. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board.

. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below
Audit Committee

Mr. Atta ur Rehman (Chairman)
Mr. Khawar Mahmud
Mr. Mazhar Pervaiz Malik

HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Khawar Mahmud (Chairman)
Mrs. Rukhsana Khalid
Mr. Mazhar Pervaiz Malik

. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documents and advised to the
committee for compliance

. The frequency of meeting of the committee were as per following:

Audit Committee - Quarterly
HR and Remuneration Committee - Yearly

. The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified & experienced
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company

. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor
children do not hold shares of the Company and that firm and all its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP

. The Statutory Auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors
have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

For and on behalf of
Board of Directors

Lahore. Pervez Ahmed
October 5, 2018 Chief Executive
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Review Report on Statement of Compliance with
Best practices of Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 ['the Regulations'] prepared by the Board of Directors of D.S. INDUSTRIES
LIMITED for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the
Regulation.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have
not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Code as reflected in the
paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Reference Description

Paragraph 9 The Board has not arranged any directors training program for its directors during
the year.

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: ZUBAIR IRFAN MALIK

Lahore: OCTOBER 05, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of D.S. INDUSTRIES LIMITED ['the Company'], which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, the statement of profit or loss, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the loss, other comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ['ISAs'] as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ['the Code'] and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2.2 to the financial statements which refers to the fact that the Company has
incurred gross loss of Rs. 15.604 million. As at June 30, 2018 the Company has accumulated losses of Rs.
760.318 million as at reporting date. Its current liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs. 268.551 million. The
Company has been unable to repay its long term debts on due dates. These factors indicate existence of a
material uncertainty that raise doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and that the
Company may not be able discharge its liabilities and realize its assets in normal course of business. However,
these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis for reasons explained in note 2.2. Our
opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

1.

Preparation of financial statements
under Companies Act, 2017

As disclosed in note 3 to the annexed
financial statements, the Companies Act,
2017 [‘the Act’] became applicable for
the first time for the preparation of the

Company’s annual financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Act forms an integral part of the
statutory financial reporting framework
as applicable to the Company and
amongst others, prescribes the nature
and content of disclosures in relation to
various elements of the financial
statements.

In the case of the Company, a summary
of key additional disclosures and
changes to the existing disclosures have
been stated in note 3 to the annexed
financial statements.

Further, the Company has also changed
its accounting policy relating to
presentation and measurement of
surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipme nt as a consequence of the
application of the Act with retrospective
effect. The impact of the said change in
accounting policy has be en disclosed in
note 5 to the accompanying financial
statements.

The above changes and enhancements
in the financial state ments are
considered important and a key audit
matter because of the volume and
significance of the changes in the
financial statements resulting from
transition to the new reporting
requirements under the Act.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We assessed the procedures applied by the
management for identification of the changes
required in the financial statements due to the
application of the Act. We considered the adequacy

and appropriateness of the additional disclo sures
and changes to the previous disclosures based on
the new requirements.

We also evaluated the sources of information used
by the management for the preparation of these
disclosures and the internal consistency of such
disclosures with other elements o f the financial
statements.

In respect of the change in accounting policy for
the accounting and presentation of surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, as
referred to in note 5 to the financial statements, we
assessed the accounting implications in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and evaluated its application
in the context of the Company.

Inventory valuation

Stock in trade amounts to Rs 54.11
million as at the reporting date. The
valuation of stock in trade at cost has
different components, which includes
judgment in relation to the allocation of
labour and overheads which are incurred
in bringing the stock to its present
location and condition. Judgment has
also been applied by managem ent in
determining the Net Realizable Value
['NRV’] of stock in trade.

The estimates and judgments applied by
management are influenced by the
amount of direct costs incurred
historically, expectations of repeat
orders to utilize the stock in trade, sales
contracts in hand and historically
realized sales prices.

The significance of the balance coupled
with the judgment involved has resulted
in the valuation of stock in trade being
identified as a key audit matter

The disclosures in relation to stock in
trade are included in note 21.

To address the valuation of stock in trade, we
assessed historical costs recorded in the valuation
of stock in trade ; testing on a sample basis with
purchase invoices. We tested the reasonability of
assumptions applied by the management in
allocating direct labour and direct overhead costs to
stock in trade.

We also assessed management’s determination of
the net realizable value of stock in trade by
performing tests on the sales prices secured by the
Company for similar or comparable items of stock
in trade .
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Key audit matter

3. Deferred taxation

At June 30, 2018, the Company had
deferred tax asset amounting to Rs.
17.21 which was not recognized.

The analysis of the recognition and
recoverability of the deferred tax assets
was significant to our audit because the
amounts are material, the assessment
process is complex and judgmental and
is based on assumptions that are
affected by expected future market or
economic conditions, es pecially as it
relates to future performance of the
Company.

The disclosures in relation to deferred
taxation are included in note 13

Annual Report June 30, 2018

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We obtained an understanding of the income tax
process, and evaluated the design and tested the
effectiveness of contro Is in this area relevant to our
audit. We performed substantive audit procedures
on the calculation of deferred tax balances based
on tax regulations, and on the analysis of the
recoverability of the deferred tax assets.

We have evaluated the company’s ass umptions and
estimates in relation to the likelihood of generating
sufficient future taxable profits.

We have involved internal tax specialists to support
us in these procedures.

Finally, we reviewed the adequacy of the
disclosures made by the company in this area.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of user taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material
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may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX 0f 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is ZUBAIR IRFAN MALIK.

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: ZUBAIR IRFAN MALIK

Lahore: OCTOBER 05, 2018
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Note

2018

2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital
100,000,000 (2017: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Discount on issue of shares

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Accumulated loss

Advance against issue of ordinary shares

TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances - secured
Employees retirement benefits
Deferred taxation

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued interest/markup

Short term borrowings

Provision for taxation

Current portion of non-current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rupees

1,000,000,000

Rupees

1,000,000,000

836,856,310
(82,899,709)
203,909,733
(760,317,860)

836,856,310

(82,899,709)

214,247,198
(697,192,244)

197,548,474

271,011,555

197,548,474

271,011,555

82,745,085
14,834,639
19,778,854

18,825,729

117,358,578

18,825,729

188,264,259
337,563
2,864,344
159,404,421
8,973,077
13,000,000

180,164,010
337,563
1,434,286
90,854,324
8,239,700
128,139,833

372,843,664

409,169,716

490,202,242

427,995,445

687,750,716

699,007,000

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Note

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 478,921,989 | [ 510,776,302
Long term investments 85,463,366 96,706,153
Long term deposits - unsecured, considered good 19,072,394 19,072,394
Deferred taxation - 933,456

583,457,749 627,488,305

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 1,109,133 1,049,204
Stock in trade 54,110,390 35,215,391
Trade debts - unsecured, considered good 30,809,522 14,473,497
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 12,594,092 12,923,324
Advance income tax/income tax refundable 3,330,422 6,758,559
Bank balances 2,339,408 1,098,720

104,292,967 71,518,695

TOTAL ASSETS 687,750,716 699,007,000

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note

2018

2017

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross loss

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative and general expenses

Other expenses

Other income

Operating (loss)/profit

Finance cost
Notional interest

Share of (loss)/profit of associates

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Taxation

(Loss)/profit after taxation

(Loss)/earnings per share -

basic and diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Rupees
717,846,175

(733,450,702)

Rupees
823,969,981

(879,568,859)

(15,604,527)

(55,598,878)

(1,852,272)
(29,132,885)
(6,066,603)

(2,474,395

(16,796,430

(37,051,760)

)
(27,806,108)
)
)

(47,076,933

(52,656,287)
14,195,755

(102,675,811)
171,623,638

(38,460,532)

(9,677,409)
15,543,107
(11,242,787)

68,947,827

(3,933,821)

16,100,595

(43,837,621)

(31,945,213)

81,114,601

(4,022,587)

(75,782,834)

77,092,014

(1.11)

1.13

DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 59,927 (47,256)
Deferred tax on remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (17,379) 14,177
Deferred tax adjustment on surplus on revaluation of

property, plant and equipment attributable to changes in tax rates 2,277,205 2,471,691

2,319,753 2,438,612
Other comprehensive income 2,319,753 2,438,612
(Loss)/profit for the year (75,782,834) 77,092,014
Total comprehensive (loss)/income (73,463,081) 79,530,626

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenue
reserves

Share capital Capital reserves

Surplus on
Issued Discount revaluation of
subscribed and issue of on issue property, plant Accumulated Total
paid-up capital  ordinary shares of shares and equipment loss equity

Advance against

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Balance as at July 01, 2016 600,000,000 63,017,255 225,389,518 (787,865,190) 100,541,583

Comprehensive income

Profit after taxation - 77,092,014 77,092,014
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 2,471,691 (33,079) 2,438,612

Total comprehensive income 2,471,691 77,058,935 79,530,626

Incremental depreciation (13,614,011) 13,614,011

Transactions with owners

Advances against issue of ordinary sharg - 90,939,346 - 90,939,346
Discount on issue of share 82,899,709 - (82,899,709) -
Issue of ordinary shares 153,956,601 (153,956,601) -

236,856,310 (63,017,255) (82,899,709) - - 90,939,346
Balance as at June 30, 2017 836,856,310 - (82,899,709) 214,247,198 (697,192,244) 271,011,555

Balance as at July 01, 2017 836,856,310 (82,899,709) 214,247,198 (697,192,244) 271,011,555

Comprehensive income

Loss after taxation - (75,782,834) (75,782,834)
Other comprehensive income 2,277,205 42,548 2,319,753

Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2,277,205 (75,740,286) (73,463,081)

Incremental depreciation (12,614,670) 12,614,670

Transactions with owners

Balance as at June 30, 2018 836,856,310 (82,899,709) 203,909,733 (760,317,860) 197,548,474

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash used in operations (43,073,677)  (36,449,030)

Payments for:
Employees retirement benefits (7,425,143) (7,864,861
Interest/markup (7,407,826) (1,398,030
Income tax (4,811,563) (2,051,125

Net cash used in operating activities (62,718,209) (47,763,046

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure (91,200) (1,107,010)
Proceeds from sale of investments - 1,155,298

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (91,200) 48,288

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term finances (4,500,000)] | (23,049,691)
Net increase in short term borrowings 68,550,097 70,880,995

Net cash generated from financing activities 64,050,097 47,831,304
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,240,688 116,546
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,098,720 982,174
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2,339,408 1,098,720

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

D.S. Industries Limited ['the Company'] is incorporated in Pakistan as a Private Limited Company under the repealed
CompaniesAct, 1913 (now the CompaniesAct, 2017) and was subsequently converted into a Public LimitedCompany.
The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited The Company is a spinning unit engaged in the manufacture
and sale of yarn. The registered office of the Companyis situated at 20-K, Gulberg Il,Lahore. The manufacturing facility is
located at 11 KM, Sheikhupura Faisalabad Road, Sheikhupura, in the Province of Punjab.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- InternationalFinancial Reporting Standards ['IFRS'"lissued by the InternationalAccounting Standards Board ['IASB'"] as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS" issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistanas notified
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the CompaniesAct, 2017 differ from the IFRSand IFAS, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Going concern assumption

The Companyhas been facing operationallosses since the previous year mainly due to decrease in selling prices in local
as well as international markets, the on-going power crises, dumping of Indian yarn at low prices along with other
factors, including economic instability and unfaviourbale textile policy of the Government, affecting the textile industry. The
Company has not been able to utilize its production capacity at an optimum level due to which the desired profitability

As a result, the Company has incurred gross loss of Rs.15.604 million. As at June 30, 2018, the Company has
accumulated losses of Rs. 760.318 millionas at the reporting date. Its current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs.
268.551 million.The Companyhas been unable to repay its long debts on due dates. These factors indicates existense of
material uncertainty that raise doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and that the Company
may not be able to discharge its liabilities and realize its assets in the normal course of bussiness. However, these
financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis based on the following:

a) The Companyhas continued financial support of its related parties in the form of interest free loans. During the year,
related parties provided financial support amounting to Rs. 21.25 million in the form of long term interest free loans.

b) The Companyis makingefforts to repay its long term finances in accordance with the repayment schedules to avail
the interest/markupwaiver offered by the lendingbanks. During the year, mark-up amountingto Rs. 12.35 millionwas
waived by Askari Bank Limited. MCB Bank Limited has agreed to waive off an amount of Rs. 85.043 million subject to

¢) The waiver of interest/markupis expected to make available sufficient working capital to the Company which will
allow the Company to achieve its target of sustainable capacity utilization.

The managementis confident that through above measures, the Company will turnaround into a profitable company,
subject to impact, if any, of uncontrollable circumstances including power crises and global market conditions.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for employees retirement
benefits liabilities measured at present value and certain financial instruments measured at fair value/amortized cost. In

Judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires managementto make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Subsequently, actual results may
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
There are no estimation uncertainties as at the reporting date. Judgments made by managementin the application of
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that have significant effect on the financial statements and
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Depreciation method, rates and useful lives of operating fixed assets (see note 6.1.1)

The Companyreassesses useful lives, depreciation method and rates for each item of operating fixed assets annually by
considering expected pattern of economic benefits that the Company expects to derive from that item.

Recoverable amount and impairment (see note 6.21)

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets for possible impairment and makes formal
estimates of recoverable amount if there is any such indication.

Obligation under defined benefit plan (see note 6.5.2)

The Company's obligation under the defined benefit plan is based on assumptions of future outcomes, the principal ones
being in respect of increases in remuneration, remaining working lives of employees and discount rates to be used to
determine present value of defined benefit obligation. These assumptions are determined periodically by independent

Taxation (see note 6.17)

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal
forums while estimating its provision for current tax. Provision for deferred tax is estimated after taking into account
historical and expected future turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law.

Provisions (see note 6.11)

Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date,
that is, the amount that the Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (see note 6.2)

Revaluation of property, plant and equipmentis carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued amounts of
non-depreciable items are determinedby reference to local marketvalues and that of depreciable items are determinedby
reference to present depreciated replacement values.

Net realizable values of stock in trade (see note 6.4)

The Company estimates net realizable values of its stock in trade as the estimatedselling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Functional currency
These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency.
Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 5, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR.

The following new and revised standards, interpretations and amendmentsare effective in the current year but are either
not relevant to the Company or their application does not have any materialimpact on the financial statements of the
Company other than presentation and disclosures.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to IAS 12 - Income Taxes)
IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 - Intangible Assets have been amended to clarify the following

- Unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value and measured at cost for tax purposes give rise to a
deductible temporary difference regardless of whether the debt instrument's holder expects to recover the carrying
amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use.

The carrying amount of an asset does not limit the estimation of probable future taxable profits.
Estimates for future taxable profits exclude tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deductible temporary

An entity assesses a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets. Where tax law restricts the
utilisation of tax losses, an entity would assess a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets of
Disclosure initiative (Amendments to IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows)

IAS 7 - Statementof Cash Flows have been amendedto clarify that entities shall provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities)
IFRS12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities have been amendedto clarify the scope of the standard by specifying
that the disclosure requirements in the standard, except for those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply to an entity’s interests

listed in paragraph 5 that are classified as held for sale, as held for distribution or as discontinued operations in
accordance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
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Companies Act, 2017

The CompaniesAct 2017 ['the Act’] was enacted on May 30, 2017. The Act has brought certain changes with regard to
the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. These changes, amongst others, included change in
respect of presentation and measurementof surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipmentas fully explainedin
note 5 of these financial statements, change in nomenclature of primary statements. Further, the disclosure requirements
contained in the fourth schedule of the Act have been revised, resulting in eliminationof duplicative disclosure with the
IFRSdisclosure requirements and incorporation of additional/amendeddisclosures including, but not limitedto, particulars
of immovable assets of the Company (see note 17.1.1 and 17.1.4), managementassessment of sufficiency of tax
provision in the financial statements (see note 32.1), change in threshold for identification of executives (see note 42),
additional disclosure requirements for related parties (see note 36), disclosure of significant events and transactions
affecting the financial position and performance of the Company (see note 6), disclosure relating to number of employess

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE.

The following standards, interpretations and amendments are in issue which are not effective as at the reporting date and
have not been early adopted by the Company. Effective date
(annual periods beginning
on or after)

July 01, 2018
July 01, 2018
January 01, 2019
January 01, 2021

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (2014)

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers (2014)
IFRS 16 — Leases (2016)

IFRS 17 — Insurance contracts (2017)

Sale or contribution of assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to IFRS10 - Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 - Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures).

Deferred Indefinitely

Clarifications to IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advances Consideration
IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments to
IFRS 2 - Share-based Payment)

Applying IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' with IFRS4 'Insurance Contracts' (Amendments to
IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts)

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 - Investment Property)
Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 Cycle

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments)

Long-term Interests in Associates and JointVentures (Amendmentsto IAS 28 - Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 — 2017 Cycle
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits)

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

January 01, 2018
January 01, 2018
January 01, 2019
January 01, 2018

July 01, 2018

January 01, 2018
January 01, 2018
January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019
January 01, 2019
January 01, 2020

Other than afore mentioned standards, interpretations and amendments, IABS has also issued the following standards
which have not been notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan [[SECP']:

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Defferal Accounts

The Company intends to adopt these new and revised standards, interpretations and amendments on their effective
dates, subject to, where required, notification by Securities and Exchange Commissionof Pakistan under section 225 of
the CompaniesAct, 2017 regarding their adoption. The managementanticipates that, except as stated below, the adoption
of the above standards, amendmentsand interpretations in future periods, will have no materialimpacton the Company's
financial statements other than in presentation/disclosures.
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IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (2014)

IFRS9 replaces IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The standard contains requirements in
the following areas:

- Classification and measurement: Financial assets are classified by reference to the business model within
which they are held and their cash flow characteristics. The standard introduces a 'fair value through
comprehensive income' category for certain debt instruments. Financial liabilitiesare classified in a similar mannerto
under IAS 39, however there are differences in the requirements applying to measurement of entity's own credit risk.

Impairment: IFRS9 introduces an 'expected credit loss' model for the measurementof the impairmentof financial
assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit loss to have occurred before a credit loss is recognized.

Hedge accounting: IFRS9 introduces a new hedge accounting model that is designed to be more closely aligned
with how entities undertake risk management activities when hedging financial and non-financial risk exposure.

- Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities are carried forward from

Adoption of this IFRS9 may result in material adjustmentto carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities. However,
the financial impact of the same cannot be estimated with reasonable certainty at this stage.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

During the year, the CompaniesAct, 2017 has been enacted and has resulted in change in accounting policy for surplus
on revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

- The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment, which was previously disclosed in the statement of
financial position of the Company after share capital and reserves, has now been included as part of equity with
corresponding inclusion in statement of changes in equity;

If an asset's carrying amountis increased as a result of revaluation, the increase will be recognised in statement of
comprehensive income. However, the increase shall be recognised in statementof profit or loss to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in statement of profit or loss;

If an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in statement
of profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognised in statementof comprehensive income to the extent of
any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. Previously, section 235 of repealed
CompaniesOrdinance, 1984 allowed that the surplus on revaluation of property, plantand equipmentmay be applied
by the Company in setting off or in diminution of any deficit arising from the revaluation of any other property, plant

The change in accounting policy does not have any impacton the amounts reported in these financial statements. Hence
a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the previous year has not been presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, except of change referred to in note 5.
Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

Operating fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmentlosses with the
exception of freehold land, which is stated at revalued amount,and buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery and
electric installation, which are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises purchase
price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, and
includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction, erection and installation.

Majorrenewals and improvementsto operating fixed assets are recognized in the carrying amountif it is probable that the
embodied future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of renewal or improvementcan be measured
reliably. The cost of the day-to-day servicing of operating fixed assets are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

The Company recognizes depreciation in profit or loss by applying reducing balance method over the useful life of each
operating fixed asset using rates specified in note 17.1 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions to operating
fixed assets is charged from the monthin which the itembecomes available for use. Depreciationis discontinued from the
month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

An operating fixed asset is de-recognized when permanently retired from use. Any gain or loss on disposal of operating
fixed assets is recognized in profit or loss.

Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less identified impairmentloss, if any, and includes the cost of material,labour

and appropriate overheads directly relating to the construction, erection or installation of an item of operating fixed assets.
These costs are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when related items become available for intended use.
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Surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipmentare recognised, net of tax, in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in surplus on revaluation of property, plantand equipmentin share capital
and reserves. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is
first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are
charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the
surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to accumulated profit.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are generally held for internal use and are valued at cost. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average
except for itemsin transit, which are valued at invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date. For items
which are considered obsolete, the carrying amountis written down to nil. Spare parts held exclusively for capitalization
are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Stock in trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the exception of stock of waste which is valued at net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the following basis:

Raw material Weighted average cost

Work in process Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

Stock in transit Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material,labour and an
appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services
rendered by employees as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an expense in profit or loss unless itis
included in the cost of inventories or property, plant and equipment as permitted or required by the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.. If the amount paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of benefits, the
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future payments or cash

Post-employment benefits

The Companyoperates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its employees who have completedthe
minimumqualifying service period. Liabilityis adjusted on each reporting date to cover the obligation and the adjustmentis
charged to statement of profit or loss with the exception of remeasurements which are recognized in statement of
comprehensive income. The amountrecognized on statement of financial position represents the present value of defined
benefit obligation. The details of the scheme are referred to in note 12 to the financial statements.

Financial instruments
Recognition

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial instruments into following classes dependingon the purpose for which the financial
assets and liabilities are acquired or incurred. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and
liabilities at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables. Assets in this category are presented as current assets except for maturities
greater than twelve months from the reporting date, where these are presented as non-current assets.
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(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are either designated as such on initial
recognition or are classified as held for trading. Financial assets are designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss if the Company manages such assets and evaluates their performance based on their fair value
in accordance with the Company’srisk managementand investment strategy. Financialassets are classified as held
for trading when these are acquired principally for the purpose of selling and repurchasing in the near term, or when
these are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is a
recent actual pattern of profit taking, or where these are derivatives, excluding derivatives that are financial
guarantee contracts or that are designated and effective hedging instruments. Financial assets in this category are

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Non-derivative financial liabilities that are not financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are classified as

financial liabilities at amortized cost. Financial liabilitiesin this category are presented as current liabilities except for

maturities greater than twelve months from the reporting date where these are presented as non-current liabilities.
Measurement

The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each
De-recognition

Financialassets are de-recognized if the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire
or if the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and
rewards of the asset. Financialliabilitiesare de-recognized if the Company's obligations specified in the contract expire or
are discharged or cancelled. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is recognized in

Off-setting

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if the Company has
legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

"Regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade date. Regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are those contracts which require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by the
regulation or convention in the market.

Ordinary share capital

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transaction costs directly attributableto the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as deduction from equity.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at
cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these are measured at amortized cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in
the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Operating leases

Leases that do not transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Trade and other payables
Financial liabilities

These are classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being their
fair value at the date the liabilityis incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initialrecognition, these are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

Non-financial liabilities

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost.
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6.11  Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Companyhas a legal and constructive obligationas a result of past events and itis
probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligationand a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provision is recognized at an amount that is the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. Where outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable, or where a reliable estimate of the amountof obligationcannot be made, a contingent
liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.

Trade and other receivables
Financial assets

These are classified as 'loans and receivables'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at
the date of transaction, plus attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost.
Investments in equity securities

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Companyhas significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of the associates have been incorporated in these financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried at cost as adjusted for post
acquisition changes in the Company's share of net assets of the associates, less any impairmentin the investment.
Losses of an associates in excess of the Company's interest in that associate are recognized only to the extent that the
Company has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payment on behalf of the associate.

Other investments

Investmentin other equity securities, on initial recognition, are measured at cost and classified as "financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss". Subsequent to initialrecognition these are measured at fair value. Gains and losses resulting
from changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns allowances, trade
discounts and rebates, and represents amounts received or receivable for goods and services provided and other
income earned in the normal course of business. Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Company, and the amount of revenue and the associated costs incurred

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of goods are transferred
Return on bank deposits is recognized using effective interest method.

Capital gain on sale of investments is recognized when sale of shares is confirmed by the broker.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensiveincomeis the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting
from transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all
components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income comprises items of income
and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and is presented in 'statement of comprehensive income'.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of timeto get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investmentincome earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Income tax

Incometax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Incometax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in
other comprehensive income.
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6.17.1 Current taxation

Current tax is the amountof tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect
of previous years. Provisionfor current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistanafter takinginto account tax
credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amountof unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior
periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for using the' balance sheet approach' providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiesfor financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Inthis
regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in
accordance with the treatment prescribed by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is
measured at rates that are expected to be appliedto the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the extent that future
taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Earnings per share ['EPS']

Basic EPSis calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Companyby the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPSis calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be
issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at banks. These are
classified as 'loans and receivables' and are carried at cost.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Company using exchange rate prevailing
at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign currency are translated to the functional
currency at exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency that are measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date
the fair value is determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominatedin foreign currency that are measured at
historical cost are translated to functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of initialrecognition. Any gain
or loss arising on translation of foreign currency transactions and balances is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is
impaired. Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairmenton an individual basis. The remainingfinancial
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similarcredit risk characteristics. A financial asset is considered to
be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future

An impairmentloss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at fair value is determined by reference to that fair value. All
impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairmentloss was recognized. An impairmentloss is reversed only to the extent that the
financial asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amountof the Company’snon-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amountis estimated. The recoverable amountof an asset or cash generating unitis the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marketassessments of the timevalue of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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An impairmentloss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairmentlosses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairmentlosses recognized in respect of cash

generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or

no longer exists. An impairmentloss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used in determiningthe

recoverable amount. An impairmentloss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amountafter the reversal

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no

Dividend distribution to ordinary shareholders

Dividendto ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit in statement of changes in equity
and as a liability, to the extent it is unclaimed/unpaid,in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

Duringthe year, there are no significant events and transactions that have affected the Company'sfinancial position and
performance.
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2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
53,685,631 (2017: 30,000,000) ordinary shares issued for cash 536,856,310 536,856,310
30,000,000 (2017: 30,000,000) ordinary shares issued as fully paid bonus shares 300,000,000 300,000,000

836,856,310 836,856,310

DISCOUNT ON ISSUE OF ORDINARY SHARES

This represents discount on issue of ordinary shares under section 84 and 86(1) of the repealed Companies Ordinance,

Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As at beginning of the year 214,247,198 225,389,518
Incremental depreciation transferred to accumulated profits
Incremental depreciation for the year (17,767,141) (19,448,587)
Deferred taxation 5,152,471 5,834,576

(12,614,670) (13,614,011)
Deferred tax adjustment attributable to changes in tax rates 2,277,205 2,471,691

As at end of the year 203,909,733 214,247,198

ADVANCE AGAINST ISSUED OF ORDINARY SHARES

As at beginning of the year 63,017,255
Transferred from short term borrowings 90,939,346
Transferred to equity (153,956,601)

As at end of the year -

LONG TERM FINANCES SECURED

Face value 98,288,192
Less: unamortized notional interest (15,543,107)

82,745,085

These represent long term finances utilized under interest/markup
arrangements from banking companies

Askari Bank Limited - 12,351,641
MCB Bank Limited 111,288,192 115,788,192

111,288,192 128,139,833
Current maturity and overdue amounts presented under current liabilities (13,000,000) (128,139,833)

98,288,192 -

The finance was obtained from Askari Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and accrued markupthereon
amountingto Rs. 39.654 millionunder a restructuring arrangement with the lender. Under the restructuring arrangement,
the liability was settled at Rs. 27.378 millionwith the remainingamount pertainingto accrued markup to be waived-off by
the lender on successful repaymentof liability. The liabilitywas structured to be repaid through down paymentof Rs. 1.5
million and thirty six monthly installments of Rs. 0.719 million each starting from June 2012. The finance carried
interest/markupat 8.96% per annum (2015: 8.96% per annum) payable monthly. The finance was secured by charge over
current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors.

The finance has been fully repaid and the remainingamount of Rs 12.35 million has been waived off by the lender in
accordance with the restructuring arrangement.
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11.1.2 The finance has been obtained from MCB Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and accrued markup
thereon amounting to Rs. 219.351 million under a restructuring arrangement with the lender. Under the restructuring
arrangement, the liability was settled at Rs. 134.308 millionwith the remainingamount of Rs. 85.04 million pertaining to
accrued markupto be waived-off by the lender on successful repaymentof liability. The liabilityis structured to be repaid
in five years in daily installmentsof Rs. 80,000 (based on 26 days a month)starting from May 2012. The lender, however,
reduced the amount of installmentto Rs. 500,000 per month on request of the Companyfor the period from April 2015 to
May 2016 with the condition that the original repayment schedule will be effective from June 2016. The lender, however
restructured the arrangementon December 30, 2016 based on which liabilitywas payable till June 25, 2018 in unequal 18
installments along with the down payment of Rs. 10 million.The lender restructured the arrangement again on March 09,
2018 based on which liability was payable till July 25, 2020 in unequal 26 installments. During the year, the lender agreed
to another rescheduling arrangement whereby the remaining principal amount of Rs. 30.246 millionis repayable in 29
installments of Rs. 1,000,000 each and one installment of Rs. 1,245,608 with the first installment due in February 2018. The
agreementfor waiver of frozen mark-up remainedunchanged. The finance does not carry interest/markup. The finance is
secured by charge over operating fixed assets and current assets of the Company, mortgage over land and building of
the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The loan has been carried at amortised cost which

For mortgages and charges on assets as security for liabilities, refer to note 41 to the financial statements.

2018
Rupees

Unamortized notional interest

Arising during the year 15,543,107

As at end of the year 15,543,107

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Companyoperates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for allits employees who have completedthe
minimumqualifying service period. Under the scheme, the Companypays a lump-sum benefit equal to last drawn monthly
gross salary for each year of service to scheme memberswhereas the members of the scheme are not required to make
any contributions to the scheme. The scheme is administered by the managementof the Companyunder the supervision
and directions of the Board of Directors of the Company. The amount recognized on statement of financial position

The amount recognized on balance sheet represents present value of defined benefit obligation.

Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

As at beginning of the year 18,825,729 18,982,138
Charged to profit or loss for the year . 3,493,980 7,661,196
Benefits paid during the year (7,425,143) (7,864,861)
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income . (59,927) 47,256

As at end of the year 14,834,639 18,825,729

Charge to profit or loss

Current service cost 2,322,710 6,570,092
Interest cost 1,171,270 1,091,104

3,493,980 7,661,196

The charge to profit or loss has been allocated as follows

Cost of sales 2,519,739 6,586,060
Administrative and general expenses 974,241 1,075,136

3,493,980 7,661,196
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Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss arising from changes in:
Experience adjustments (59,927) 47,256

(59,927) 47,256

Principal actuarial assumptions

Present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at the
reporting date is based on actuarial valuation carried out by independent actuaries. The principal assumptions used in
determining present value of defined benefit obligation are:

2018 2017

Discount rate 8.00% 7.75%
Expected rates of increase in salary 7.00% 6.75%
Expected average remaining working lives 9 years 8 years
Average duration of the defined benefit obligation

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is eight years.
Expected charge to profit or loss for the next financial year

The expected charge to profit or loss for the year ending June 30, 2019 amounts to Rs. 3.78 million.
Sensitivity analysis

An analysis of sensitivity for discount rate and expected rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected
by changes in relevant actuarial assumption that were reasonably possible at that date is as follows:

2018 2017
Change Defined Change Defined
in actuarial benefit in actuarial benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation

Rupees Rupees

Discount rate +1% 13,308,009 +1% 17,254,130
-1% 16,610,173 -1% 20,666,602

Expected rate of increase in salary +1% 16,610,173 +1% 20,666,602
-1% 13,281,328 -1% 17,226,703

A change in expected remaining working lives of employees is not expected to have a material impact on the present value
of defined benefit obligation. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis for the same has not been carried out.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation
as itis unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation as at
the reporting date has been calculated using projected unit credit method, which is the same as that applied in calculating
the defined benefit obligation to be recognized in these financial statements.

Risk factors
The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following actuarial risks:

Interest risk: The discount rate used in determination of present value of defined benefit obligationhas been determined
by reference to marketyield at the reporting date on PakistanInvestment Bonds since there is no deep marketin long term
corporate bonds in Pakistan. An increase in market yield resulting in a higher discount rate will decrease in the defined

Longevity risk: The present value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
expected remainingworking lives of the employees. An increase in the expected remainingworking lives will increase the
defined benefit obligation. However, the increase is not expected to be material.

Salary risk: The present value of defined benefit obligationis calculated by reference to future salaries of employees. An
increase in salary of employees will increase the defined benefit obligation.
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DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences 101,649,677 111,481,749
Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences (81,870,823) (112,415,205)

Net liability/(asset) 19,778,854 (933,456)

Recognized deferred liabilities and tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are attributable to the following:

2018
As at Recognized in Recognized As at
July 01, 2017 profit or loss in OClI June 30, 2018
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 111,481,749 (7,554,867) (2,277,205) 101,649,677

Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits (5,647,719) 1,328,295 (4,302,045)
Provisions (520,077) 23,095 - (496,982)
Unused tax losses and credits (106,247,409) 29,175,613 - (77,071,796)

(112,415,205) 30,527,003 17,379 (81,870,823)
(933,456) 22,972,136 (2,259,826) 19,778,854

2017
As at Recognized in Recognized As at
July 01, 2016 profit or loss in OCI  June 30, 2017
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 122,021,057 (8,067,617) (2,471,691) 111,481,749

Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits (5,884,463) 250,921 (14,177) (5,647,719)
Provisions (4,492,257) 3,972,180 - (520,077)
Unused tax losses and credits (105,874,812) (372,597) - (106,247,409)

(116,251,532) 3,850,504 (14,177)  (112,415,205)
5,769,525 (4,217.113) (2,485.868) (933,456)

Deferred tax asset on unused tax credits amountingto Rs. 17.21 millionhas not been recognized as sufficient taxable
profits are not expected to be available in future against which this could be utilized. The deferred tax asset on unused tax
losses has been recognized only the extent of unabsorbed tax depreciation losses as these are availabe for use for an
infinite period under the present income tax laws.

Deferred tax has been calculated at 29% (2017: 30%) of the temporary differences as at the reporting date based on tax
rates notified by the Government of Pakistan for future tax years.
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2018

2017

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors - unsecured

Accrued liabilities

Advances from customers - unsecured
Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund

Tax deducted at source

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

As at beginning of the year
Interest on funds utilized by the Company
Paid during the year

As at end of the year

Interest is charged at 12.19% (2017: 12.35%) per annum.

Rupees

76,295,005
46,928,426
53,245,070
2,235,571
1,359,785
8,200,402

Rupees

64,146,269
29,490,946
69,669,934
8,414,830
2,717,171
5,724,860

188,264,259

180,164,010

8,414,830
242,965
(6,422,224)

8,928,238
924,772
(1,438,180)

2,235,571

8,414,830

2018

2017

Workers' Welfare Fund

As at beginning of the year
Paid/adjusted during the year

As at end of the year

SHORT TERM BORROWINGSUNSECURED
Secured

This represent short term finances utilized under
interest/markup arrangements from banking company

Running finances

Unsecured
Loan from related parties - subordinate

Rupees

2,717,171
(1,357,386)

Rupees

2,717,171

1,359,785

2,717,171

109,138,669

50,265,752

49,625,760

41,228,564

159,404,421

90,854,324

This facility has been obtained from SilkBank Limitedfor working capital requirements and carries interest/markup at three
months KIBORplus 5.50% (2017: three months KIBORplus 5.50%) per annum, payable quarterly. This facility is secured
by charge over present and future current assets and operating fixed assets of the Company, subordination of loan from

directors and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors.

The aggregate available short term funded facility amountsto Rs. 110 million(2017: Rs. 50 million)out of which Rs. 0.861

million(2017: Rs. .374 million) remained unavailed as at the reporting date.

These represent temporary loans obtained from related parties and are unsecured and interest free. Details are as

2018

2017

As at beginning of the year

Obtained during the year

Transferred to advance against issue of ordinary shares
Repaid during the year

As at end of the year

Rupees

41,228,564
24,442,000

(15,404,812)

Rupees

110,912,675
21,255,235
(90,939,346)

50,265,752

41,228,564
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess ['GIDC'Thas been levied with effect from December 15, 2011 on industrial gas
customers firstly through OGRA notification and subsequently via GIDCess Ordinance 2014 and GID Cess Act 2015. The
Company, along with other industrial concerns, has filed a writ petition in the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging the
impositionof GIDC.On October 26, 2016, the Honorable High Court of Sindh held that enactment of GIDCAct 2015 is ultra-
vires to the constitution of Pakistan. The Company has not recognised any provision relating to GIDCaggregating to Rs.
14.48 million.

Commitments

There are no known commitments as at the reporting date.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets . 478,921,989 510,776,302
478,921,989 510,776,302
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17.1.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales

Administrative and selling expenses

31,189,232
756,281

33,867,162
769,700

31,945,513 34,636,862

Most recent valuation of land, building, plant and machinary was carried out by an independent valuer Messrs Excel
Enterprises as on March 31, 2016. For basis of valuation and other fair value measurement disclosures, refer to note 40.

Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated depreciation and net book value of revalued items would have been

Freehold land

Buildings on freehold land
Plant and machinery
Electric installation

Freehold land

Buildings on freehold land
Plant and machinery
Electric installation

As per most recent valuation,

2018

Cost
Rupees

5,382,168
129,490,940
468,167,430

23,915,115

Accumulated Net
depreciation book value
Rupees Rupees

- 5,382,168
91,716,207 37,774,733
307,388,068 160,779,362
17,049,685 6,865,430

2017

Cost
Rupees

5,382,168
129,490,940
468,167,430

23,915,115

Accumulated Net
depreciation book value
Rupees Rupees

- 5,382,168
87,519,014 41,971,926
298,925,996 169,241,434
16,286,859 7,628,256

forced sale values of freehold land, buildings on freehold land and pland and machinery are

Rupees

Freehold land
Buildings on freehold land
Plant and machinery

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

48,180,000
142,647,750
368,181,100

559,008,850

This represents investment in ordinary shares of associates. The investments has been accounted for by using equity

method. The details are as fol

lows:

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited
Pervez Ahmed Capital (Private) Limited

85,463,366

96,706,153

85,463,366

96,706,153
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2018

2017

Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited

Cost of investment

Share of post acquisition losses

Share of post acquisition changes in equity
Accumulated impairment

Number of shares held

Percentage of ownership interest

Rupees

3,412,243
(1,538,253)

(160,258)
(1,713,732)

Rupees

3,412,243
(1,518,396)

(160,258)
(1,733,589)

No. of shares

61,550

No. of shares

61,550

% age
0.03

% age
0.03

2017

2016

Market value per share

Extracts of financial statements of Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited

Rupees

1.97

Rupees

1.97

The assets and liabilities of Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited as at the reporting date and related revenue and profit for

the year then ended based on the audited financial statements are as follows:

2018

2017

Assets

Liabilities

Loss for the year
Share of loss

Pervez Ahmed Capital (Private) Limited

Cost of investment
Share of post acquisition profits

Rupees

112,832,467
(654,347,517)
(60,188,881)
(19,857)

85,000,000
463,366

Rupees

187,381,926
668,708,095
(229,996,591)

(75,877)

85,000,000
11,706,153

85,463,366

96,706,153

2018

2017

Number of shares held

Percentage of ownership interest

Break-up value per share

No. of shares

7,727,000

No. of shares

7,727,000

% age
44.88

% age
44.88

Rupees
11.29

Rupees
12.52

Extracts of financial statements of Pervez Ahmed Capital (Private) Limited

The assets and liabilitiesof Pervez Ahmed Capital (Private) Limitedas at the reporting date and related revenue and profit
for the year then ended based on the audited financial statements are as follows:
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2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Assets 190,429,456 215,745,881
Liabilities (3,930,464) 265,248
(Loss)profit for the year (25,051,177) 35,875,343
Share of (loss)/profit (11,242,787) 16,100,595

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

These have been deposited with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These are classified as 'loans and
receivables' under IAS 39 'Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement'which are required to be carried at
amortized cost. However, these, being held for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date, are carried at cost as their
amortized cost is impracticable to determine.

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 529,159 699,966
Spares 579,974 349,238

1,109,133 1,049,204

There are no spare parts exclusively held for capitalization as at the reporting date.

Note

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material 40,251,466 19,671,543
Work in process 9,999,900 12,868,500
Finished goods 2,157,000 1,971,000
Waste 1,702,024 704,348

54,110,390 35,215,391

Entire stock in trade, with exception of stock of waste, is carried at cost being lower than net realizable value.

Details of stock pledged as security are referred to in note 41 to the financial statements.
TRADE DEBTS UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD
This includes receivable from D.S. Textiles Limited, a related party, amounting to Rs. 23,117,111 (2017: Rs. 5,307,203)

against sale of goods. Maximum balance due from the related party at any time during the year amounted to Rs.
27,048,111 (2017: 20,227,478). The analysis of age is as follows:

L

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Due by 0 to 180 days 23,117,111 5,307,203
Due by 181 days to one year - -
Due by more than one year - -

23,117,111 5,307,203
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2018~ 2017
Rupees Rupees

ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers - unsecured, considered good 3,005,729 6,264,410
Advances to employees : 3,097,215 2,335,375
Prepayments 55,518 128,198
Sales tax refundable 6,435,630 4,195,341

12,594,092 12,923,324

These represent advances to employees for expenses on behalf of the Company and those against salaries in
accordance with the Company policy. No advances have been given to any of the directors of the Company.

Note i 2018
Rupees

BANK BALANCES

Current accounts 1,951,975 711,287
Saving/deposit accounts . 387,433 387,433

2,339,408 1,098,720

Effective markup rate in respect of saving and deposit accounts ranges from 3.5% to 5% (2017: 3.5% to 5%) per annum.

Note " 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

SALES - NET

Yarn 657,133,310 761,259,132
Fabric 6,960,576 3,411,520
Waste 20,371,004 33,923,674
Cotton 33,381,285 25,375,655

717,846,175 823,969,981

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed . 424,815,978 542,605,981
Cost of cotton sold 33,381,285 25,375,655
Cost of fabric sold 6,960,576 3,411,520
Stores and spares consumed 18,458,950 22,847,473
Salaries, wages and benefits . 92,540,901 115,437,730
Power and fuel 117,981,927 130,095,242
Traveling and conveyance 1,043,140 781,242
Repair and maintenance 2,215,400 2,268,727
Insurance 1,473,232 928,274
Entertainment 664,032 1,146,258
Depreciation 31,189,232 33,867,162
Others 1,041,125 1,024,113

Manufacturing cost 731,765,778 879,789,377

Work in process
As at beginning of the year 12,868,500 10,751,777
As at end of the year (9,999,900) (12,868,500)

2,868,600 (2,116,723)
Cost of goods manufactured 734,634,378 877,672,654
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Finished goods
As at beginning of the year 1,971,000 3,948,741
As at end of the year (2,157,000) (1,971,000)

(186,000) 1,977,741

Waste
As at beginning of the year 704,348 622,812
As at end of the year (1,702,024) (704,348)

(997,676) (81,536)
733,450,702 __ 879,568,859

Raw material consumed

As at beginning of the year 19,671,543 4,887,245
Purchased during the year 478,777,186 582,765,934
Sold during the year (33,381,285) (25,375,655)
As at end of the year (40,251,466) (19,671,543)

424,815,978 542,605,981

These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 2,519,739 (2017: Rs. 6,586,060).

L L

Note 2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 570,000 458,350
Insurance 88,891 297,970
Advertising and publicity 110,160 81,920
Freight and forwarding 1,083,221 1,636,155

1,852,272 2,474,395

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits : 15,642,684 14,050,968
Communication 1,005,742 693,228
Traveling and conveyance 1,643,035 665,127
Printing and stationery 343,081 438,296
Repair and maintenance 572,384 762,993
Vehicles running and maintenance 2,150,338 1,749,671
Rent, rates and taxes 1,121,313 1,166,277
Entertainment 938,514 748,322
Insurance 339,187 305,175
Legal and professional 318,000 1,594,025
Utilities 2,077,194 1,087,949
Fee and subscription 1,580,132 2,655,771
Auditor's remuneration : 645,000 645,000
Depreciation 756,281 769,700
Others - 473,606

29,132,885 27,806,108

These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 974,241 (2017: Rs. 1,075,136).

| 43 | D.S. INDUSTRIES LIMITED




Annual Report June 30, 2018

2018

2017

Auditor's remuneration

Annual statutory audit
Limited scope review
Out of pocket expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on financial instruments
Impairment for doubtful debts
Other expenses

Donations
Foreign exchange loss

None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donees.

Rupees

525,000
105,000
15,000

Rupees

525,000
105,000
15,000

645,000

645,000

15,360,359

1,142,188
4,924,415

1,383,200
52,871

6,066,603

1,436,071

6,066,603

16,796,430

OTHER INCOME

Gain on financial instruments

Return on bank deposits

Liabilities written back

Waiver of debt finances and accrued markup thereon
Gain on sale of investment

26,905
1,817,209
12,351,641

32,376
171,189,424

401,838

14,195,755

171,623,638

This represents long term finance and markup thereon waived of by the bankingcompany on settlementin accordance

with a restructuring arrangement. (see note 11.1.1).

FINANCE COST

Interest/markup/profit on borrowings

short term borrowings
Interest on workers' profit participation fund
Bank charges and commission

TAXATION

Current taxation
for current year

Deferred taxation
attributable to origination and reversal of temporary differences
attributable to changes in tax rates
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8,837,884
242,965
596,560

2,606,072
924,772
402,977

9,677,409

3,933,821

8,973,077

8,239,700

20,663,816
2,308,320

(6,502,691)
2,285,578

22,972,136

(4,217,113)

31,945,213

4,022,587
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321

Provision for taxation has been made under section 113 (2017: section 113) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the
Ordinance"). There is no relationship between tax expense and accounting profit. Accordingly, no numerical
reconciliation has been presented. According to management, the provision for current taxation made in the financial
statements is sufficient to discharge tax liability. A comparison of last three years of provision for current taxation with

L

2017 2016 2015

Rupees Rupees Rupees
Provision for current taxation as per financial statements

Tax assessment under the Ordinance

8,239,700 629,573
8,239,700 -

(11,305,853)
2,239,965

Assessments for the tax years up to 2017 have either been finalized or are deemed assessments in terms of section
120(1) of the Ordinance, as per returns filed by the Company.

The Governmentof Pakistanvide Finance Act 2017 notified a reduced tax rate of 30% for tax year 2018 as compared to

31% applicable to previous year for Companies.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders Rupees (75,782,834)

77,092,014

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the yNar of shares 67,981,733

67,981,733

(Loss)/earnings per share - Basic Rupees (1.11)

1.13

There is no anti-dilutive/dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per share of the Company.

Note Y 2018

2017

Rupees

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash and other items

(43,837,621)

Rupees

81,114,601

Interest/markup on borrowings 8,837,884
Notional interest (15,543,107)
Impairment for doubtful debts -

Liabilities written back (1,817,209)
Waiver of debt finances and accrued markup thereon (12,351,641)
Gain on sale of investments -

Share of loss/(profit) of associates 11,242,787
Provision for employees retirement benefits 3,493,980
Depreciation 31,945,513

2,606,072
15,360,359
(171,189,424)
(401,838)
(16,100,595)
7,661,196
34,636,862

Operating loss before changes in working capital 25,808,207

Changes in working capital

(127,427,368)

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Trade and other payables

(59,929)
(18,894,999)
(16,336,025)
329,232
9,917,458

(12,425)

(15,004,816)
8,636,981
9,372,003
6,871,994

(25,044,263)

9,863,737

Cash used in operations (43,073,677)

(36,449,030)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 2,339,408

1,098,720

2,339,408

1,098,720
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TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties from the Company's perspective comprise sponsors of the Company, associated companies and
undertakings and key management personnel. Key managementpersonnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, and includes the
Chief Executive and Directors of the Company. The details of Company's related parties, with whom the Company had
transactions during the year or has balances outstanding as at the reporting date are as follows:

Name of related party Nature of relationship Basis of relationship Aggregate
%age of
shareholding
in the

Pervez Ahmed Key management personnel Chief executive officer 16.02%
Rehana Pervez Ahmed Spouse of director Spouse of director 19.57%
Mr Hassan Ibrahim Key management personnel Director 3.07%
Ali Pervez Ahmed Key management personnel Director 4.32%
Pervez Ahmed Capital (Private) Limited Associated company Common directorship 0.02%
Infinite Buying Services Associated company Common directorship N/A
D.S. Textiles Limited Associated company Common directorship 3.51%

Transactions with sponsors are limited to provision of interest free loans to the Company and issuance of ordinary
shares and those with key managementpersonnel are limitedto payment of short term employee benefits only. The
Companyin the normal course of business carries out various transactions with associates and associated undertakings
and continues to have a policy whereby all such transactions are carried out on commercial terms and conditions which
are equivalent to those prevailing in an arm's length transaction, with the exception of borrowings, which are interest

Details of transactions and balances with related parties is as follows:

Transactions with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Associated companies Purchase of goods and services - 6,153,945
and undertakings Sale of goods and services 31,468,100 14,966,180
Short term borrowings obtained - net 5,423,355 8,484,235

Sponsors Short term borrowings obtained - net 3,613,833 12,771,000
Key management personnel Short-term employee benefits 4,987,500 5,700,000

Balances with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of balance

Associated companies Trade debts 23,117,111 5,307,203
and undertakings Advance against issue of ordinary shares - 19,998
Short term borrowings 19,225,000 13,801,645

Key management personnel Short-term employee benefits payable 12,996,695 12,484,836
Sponsors Short term borrowings 31,040,752 27,426,919

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments by class and category are as follows:
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Financial assets
Loans and receivables

Long term deposits 19,072,394 19,072,394
Trade debts 30,809,522 14,473,497
Advances to employees 3,097,215 2,335,375
Bank balances 2,339,408 1,098,720

55,318,539 36,979,986

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Long term finances 111,288,192 128,139,833
Trade creditors 76,295,005 64,146,269
Accrued liabilities 46,928,426 29,490,946
Unclaimed dividend 337,563 337,563
Accrued interest/markup 2,864,344 1,434,286
Short term borrowings 159,404,421 90,854,324

397,117,951 314,403,221

FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk). These risks affect revenues, expenses and assets and liabilities of the

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishmentand oversight of risk managementframework. The
Board of Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk managementframework. The risk policy
focuses on unpredictability of financial markets, the Company’s exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks. The managementteam of the Company is
responsible for administering and monitoring the financial and operational financial risk management throughout the
Company in accordance with the risk management framework.

The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial position and performance, and
forecast transactions of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its

Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Credit risk principally arises from loans and receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is

Loans and receivables

Long term deposits 19,072,394 19,072,394
Trade debts 30,809,522 14,473,497
Bank balances 2,339,408 1,098,720

52,221,324 34,644,611

Concentration of credit risk

The Company identifies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximumexposure to credit
risk by type of counterparty is as follows:

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Customers
Banking companies and financial institutions
Utility companies and regulatory authorities

30,809,522 14,473,497
2,339,408 1,098,720
19,072,394 19,072,394

52,221,324 34,644,611
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38.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to historical
information about counterparty default rates.

(a) Counterparties with external credit ratings

These include banking companies and financial institutions, which are counterparties to 'bank balances'. These
counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various credit rating agencies. Due to long
standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing,
management does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company.

Counterparties without external credit ratings

These include customers which are counter parties to 'trade debts' and utility companies and regulatory authorities
which are counter parties to 'long term deposits'. The deposits placed with utility companies and regulatory
authorities do not carry any significant credit risk. The analysis of ages of trade debts as at the reporting date is as

L4

2018 4 2017
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
carrying amount Impairment carrying amount Impairment
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Due by 0 to 180 days 25,912,342 8,008,317
Due by 181 to one year - 352,000
Due by more than one year 4,897,180 6,113,180

30,809,522 14,473,497

The Company's two (2017: four) significant customers account for Rs. 28.01 million(2017: Rs. 23.04 million)of
trade debts as at the reporting date, apart from which, exposure to any single customer exceed 10% (2017: 10%)
of trade debts as at the reporting date. Out of these, no trade debts are doubtful. These customers have long
standing business relationships with the Company and have a good payment record and accordingly non-
performance by these customers is not expected.

38.1.4 Collateral held

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets.

Credit risk management

The Companymanages credit risk by limitingsignificant exposure to any single customer. Formalpolicies and procedures
of credit managementand administrationof receivables are established and executed. In monitoringcustomer credit risk,
the ageing profile of total receivables and individually significant balances, along with collection activities are reviewed on
a regular basis. High risk customers are identified and restrictions are placed on future trading, including suspending
future shipments and administering dispatches on a prepayment basis.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The followings is the analysis of contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest/markup/profit payments.

2018
Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cash flows or less five years five years
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 111,288,192 111,288,192 111,288,192
Trade creditors 76,295,005 76,295,005 76,295,005
Accrued liabilities 46,928,426 46,928,426 46,928,426
Unclaimed dividend 337,563 337,563 337,563
Accrued interest/markup 2,864,344 2,864,344 2,864,344
Short term borrowings 159,404,421 159,404,421 159,404,421

397,117,951 397,117,951 397,117,951
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2017
Carrying Contractual One year One to More than
amount cash flows or less five years five years
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 128,139,833 128,139,833 128,139,833
Trade creditors 64,146,269 64,146,269 64,146,269
Accrued liabilities 29,490,946 29,490,946 29,490,946
Unclaimed dividend 337,563 337,563 337,563
Accrued interest/markup 1,434,286 1,434,286 1,434,286
Short term borrowings 90,854,324 90,854,324 90,854,324

314,403,221 314,403,221 314,403,221

Overdue financial liabilities

During the year, the Company has defaulted in repayment of its long term finances in accordance with the repayment
schedule. However, the management of the Company is optimistic that these will be settled in the ensuing year.

Liquidity risk management

The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meetits liabilitieswhen due, under both normaland stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Company'sreputation. The Company monitors cash flow requirements and produces cash flow
projections for the short and long term. Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet
expected operational cash flows, including servicing of financial obligations. This includes maintenanceof balance sheet
liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance
on large individual customer. The Company has continued support of its sponsors and other related parties in respect of

The Company has defaulted in payment of the long term finances.
Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrumentwill fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Company is not exposed to currency risk as at the reporting date.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in interest rates. The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk as at the reporting date as the Companyonly
has fixed rate instruments which are not accounted for a fair value through profit or loss.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments. The Company is not exposed to price risk since the fair values of the Company's financial instruments are

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Company, while managing capital are to ensure that it continues to meet the going concern
assumption, enhance shareholders' wealth and meet stakeholders' expectations. The Company's objective is to ensure
its sustainable growth viz. maintainingoptimalcapital structure, keeping its finance cost low, exercising option of issuing
right shares or, where possible, repurchasing shares, selling surplus property, plantand equipmentwithout affecting the
optimal production and operating level and regulating dividend payout. The Company monitors capital using the gearing
ratio which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances, including current maturity. Total
capital employed includes equity, as shown in the statement of financial position plus surplus on revaluation of property,
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Unit 2018 2017

Total debt Rupees 111,288,192 128,139,833
Total equity Rupees 401,458,207 485,258,753

512,746,399 613,398,586

Gearing % age 21.70% 20.89%

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital managementduring the year. The Companyis not subject
to any other externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt covenants, commonly
imposed by the providers of debt finances.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company measures some of its financial assets at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
measurements are classified using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in makingthe
measurements and has the following levels.

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy of assets measured at fair value and the information about how the fair values of these financial
instruments are determined are as follows:

Financial Instruments

There are no recurring or non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date. The management considers the
carrying amount of all the financial instruments to approximate their fair values.

Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments.
Recurring fair value measurements

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined
is as follows:

L

Level 1 Level 2 " 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 60,225,000 - 60,225,000 60,225,000
Buildings - 150,205,711 150,205,711 166,895,235
Plant and machinery 255,872,626 255,872,626 269,339,606
Electric installations 9,294,569 9,294,569 10,327,297

For fair value measurements categorised into Level 2 and Level 3 the following information is relevant:

Valuation technique Significant inputs Sensitivity

Freehold land Market comparable Estimated purchase price, A 5% increase in estimated
approach that reflects including non-refundable purchase price, including non-
recent transaction prices purchase taxes and other costs refundable purchase taxes and
for similar properties directly attributable to the other costs directly attributable to

acquisition. the acquisition would result in a
significant increase in fair value of
buildings by Rs. 3.01 million (2017:
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Valuation technique

Significant inputs

Sensitivity

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Electric installation

Cost approach that
reflects the cost to the
market participants  to
construct assets of
comparable utility and age,
adjusted for obsolescence
and depreciation. There
was no change in
valuation technique during

Cost approach that
reflects the cost to the
market participants  to
acquire assets of
comparable utility and age,
adjusted for obsolescence
and depreciation. There
was no change in
valuation technique during
Cost approach that
reflects the cost to the
market participants  to
acquire assets of
comparable utility and age,
adjusted for obsolescence
and depreciation. There
was no change in

Estimated construction costs
and other ancillary expenditure.

Estimated purchase price,
including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes and
other costs directly attributable
to the acquisition or
construction, erection  and
installation.

Estimated purchase price,
including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes and
other costs directly attributable
to the acquisition or
construction, erection and
installation.

A 5% increase in estimated
construction and other ancillary
expenditure would results in a
significant increase in fair value of
buildings by Rs. 7.51 million(2016:
Rs. 8.34 million).

A 5% increase in estimated
purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes and other directly
attributable costs would results in
a significant increase in fair value
of plant and machinery by Rs.
12.793 million (2017: Rs. 13.467
million).

A 5% increase in estimated
purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes and other directly
attributable costs would results in
a significant increase in fair value
of electric installation by Rs.
464,728 (2016: Rs. 516,365).

valuation technique during
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized in Level 3 is presented in note 17.1.

There were no transfers between fair value hierarchies during the year.
Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

2018
Rupees

2017
Rupees

RESTRICTION ON TITLE AND ASSETS PLEDGED/MORTGAGED AS SECURITY

Mortgages and charges

318,000,000
840,000,000

311,330,000
700,000,000

Charge over current assets
Charge over operating fixed assets

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief executive, directors and executives of the Company
on account of managerialremuneration, allowances and perquisites, post employmentbenefits and the number of such
directors and executives is as follows:

2018
Directors
Rupees

Executives
Rupees

Chief Executive
Rupees

Managerial remuneration - 3,217,746 -
Allowances and perquisites - 1,769,754 -
Post employment benefits - - -

4,987,500 -

Number of persons 2 -
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2017
Chief Executive Directors Executives
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration - 3,677,424 -
Allowances and perquisites - 2,022,576 -
Post employment benefits - - -

5,700,000

Number of persons 2
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is a single reportable segment.
All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan.
All sales of the Company have originated from Pakistan.

There are three (2017: four) significant external customers to whom sales in excess of 10% of the Company's total sales
amounting to Rs. 351.94 million (2017: Rs. 476.67 million) were made during the year.

SHARES IN THE COMPANY HELD BY ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES

Ordinary shares in the Company held by associated undertakings and related parties, other than chief executive and
directors, are as follows:

2,018 2,017
No. of shares No. of shares

Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited - 3,614,000
D.S. Textiles Limited 2,904,221 2,934,221
D.S. Apparel (Private) Limited 6,000 6,000
Ali Pervez Capital (Private) Limited 18 18
Infinite Securities Limited 1,527,000 1,156,000
Pervez Ahmed Capital (Private) Limited 16,923 16,923

4,454,162 7,727,162

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2,018 2,017

Number of spindles installed No. 40,320 40,320
Plant capacity on the basis of utilization converted into 20s count Kgs 11,125,727 11,125,727
Actual production converted into 20s count Kgs 6,315,551 7,779,901

Itis difficult to precisely compare production capacity and the resultant production converted into base count in the textile
industry since it fluctuates widely dependingon various factors such as count of yarn spun, raw materials used, spindle
speed and twist etc. It would also vary according to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year. Further,
power shortage in the country has also resulted in lower capacity utilization.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Head office
2018

Total number of employees 27

Average number of employees 26

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events after the reporting period which may require adjustmentof and/or disclosure in these
financial statements
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48 RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT

As at the reporting date, subject to the appropriateness of going concern assumption, recoverable amounts of all
assets/cash generating units are equal to or exceed their carrying amounts, unless stated otherwise in these financial

49 RECLASSIFICATIONS

The following have been reclassified for compliance with Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.

Particulars From To 2018 2017

Unclaimed dividend Trade and other payables  Statement of Financial Position 337,563 337,563
50 GENERAL
50.1  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

50.2 Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison.
However, there were no significant reclassifications during the year other than those referred to in note 49.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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D S Industries Limited
Pattern of Shareholding
As At June 30, 2018

Number of Shareholding Total Number of
Shareholders From Shares Held

211 8,741
236 103,987
313 306,071
613 1,958,995
270 2,242,834
73 966,364

1,050,342

1,172,535

65,001
70,001
75,001 313,000
80,001 , 571,701
85,001 352,000
90,001 , 183,500
95,001 , 1,897,000
100,001 105,000 309,000
105,001 110,000 220,000
110,001 115,000 448,500
115,001 120,000 120,000
120,001 125,000 122,000
125,001 130,000 130,000
130,001 135,000 535,500
135,001 140,000 139,500
140,001 145,000 143,000
145,001 150,000 446,500
150,001 155,000 151,500
155,001 160,000 316,500
160,001 165,000 164,000
165,001 170,000 672,000
170,001 175,000 346,500
180,001 185,000 739,000
185,001 190,000 188,500
195,001 200,000 400,000
200,001 205,000 203,500
205,001 210,000 208,500
210,001 215,000 211,500
215,001 220,000 433,000
235,001 240,000 478,500
240,001 245,000 490,000
245,001 250,000 248,000
250,001 255,000 254,000
255,001 260,000 258,000
270,001 275,000 272,000
275,001 280,000 276,000
290,001 295,000 293,500
295,001 300,000 300,000
325,001 330,000 660,000
335,001 340,000 1,019,882
345,001 350,000 350,000
350,001 355,000 351,500
370,001 375,000 375,000
395,001 400,000 400,000
430,001 435,000 430,500
475,001 480,000 477,000
590,001 595,000 1,184,000
595,001 600,000 600,000
640,001 645,000 641,000
655,001 660,000 659,500
670,001 675,000 675,000
695,001 700,000 700,000
700,001 705,000 703,500
705,001 710,000 707,800
720,001 725,000 721,500
805,001 810,000 810,000
810,001 815,000 812,736
1,000,001 1,005,000 1,005,000
1,495,001 1,500,000 2,997,500
1,525,001 1,530,000 1,527,000
1,675,001 1,680,000 1,676,500
2,030,001 2,035,000 2,034,721
2,100,001 2,105,000 2,101,500
3,610,001 3,615,000 3,610,667
6,630,001 6,635,000 6,631,183
9,300,001 9,305,000 9,301,500
13,360,001 13,365,000 13,360,025

8
4
4
4
7
4
2
19
3
2
4
1
1
1
4
1
1
3
1
2
1
4
2
4
1
2
1
1
1
2
2
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
3
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

2096 83,685,631
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D S Industries Limited
Categories of Shareholders
As At June 30, 2018

Number

Associated Companies & Related Parties

D.S.Textiles Limited

D.S.Apparel (Pvt.) Limited

Ali Pervez Capital (pvt.) Limited
Infinite Securities Limited

Pervez Ahmed Capital (Pvt.) Limited

Chief Executive & Directors

Mr. Pervez Ahmed - Chief Executive
Mr. Ali Pervez Ahmed

Mr. Suleman Ahmed

Mrs Rukhsana Khalid

Mr. Atta Ur Rehman

Mr. Khawar Mahmud

Mr. Mazhar Pervaiz Malik

Mrs. Rehana Pervez Ahmed W/o Mr. Pervez Ahmed

NIT & ICP

Banks, DFI and NBFI
Insurance Companies
General Public (Local)
General Public (Foreign)
Joint Stock Companies

Others

Annual Report June 30, 2018

Shares Held Percentage

2,904,221
6,000

18
1,527,000
16,923

8,389,183
3,610,667
62,666
10,000
2,000
1,000
1,000
13,950,525
339,882
71,749
31,985
47,167,577
2,283,184
3,226,001

84,050

83,685,631 100.000

Detail of Shareholding of 5% and above.

Mr. Pervez Ahmed - Chief Executive

Mrs. Rehana Pervez Ahmed W/o Mr. Pervez Ahmed

Mr. Arshad Hussain Laghari

Shares Held Percentage

8,389,183 10.025

13,950,525 16.670

9,301,500 11.115

| 55 | D.S. INDUSTRIES LIMITED




Annual Report June 30, 2018

Ny Jf WJH
% /

g s GdTy e lloni QL P g o i S F L L Dol 20180230:18 SE Sy i 83
- Q/J/&}Ln"g/’/
dAva
BBt 55 508G ot o e b NG K 15,604 umd S b bl s F20180230
<+?¢,/uf43.837uwd-’;gfg KJW»Z/@G‘*L&VJ;J’G;MU«J'SM 14
e

e G G S LI L STl i gBer\ £t il B e Un b T

£2018.45122- S )3k LS L P ﬁ/um}wmJ@m(ryumdﬁ);zm8/.;427L~;2018/.;W23U:Cf E
UE T IULEA s UG P ECHS c6-Shed0-Ced 2 GF it (ot ) UHISHITHI Ao 22 e o e B b
4_54&!”1} cL L Sty Q’/}’:«J?

S Sor’

i AL e a3 K e sty B SO, P G S P oL 1201800230

AasbeldPls bl 4T

<uzu@_,/l§dﬁ~gwﬁéuw'&l}l.mv@/jiéuﬂ l/q":;f
N1

Sebdess 2 LIAG G St U e I 36 G Ut et e iz 22 i Iz S| 2 Sl
o] gu:L/Awu:»guuﬁ1éawfi£,),Jf”?ﬂﬁ‘;_ﬁ)&/ﬁ&m Btk et A ek S el (i

SF e Sut L Sl Posksd Er Gt LSS in S b HE g £ L §dout e S AME-Ln L
-La(72&&L0gu:;wfévﬂwé&ixwu

ATSUrtle o 8L 4.

e 3o S P A s UG\ E A ST Jdi s F42018 230

S ool 04f (t

g

5 EPTEY: 2iyrpte

| 56 | D.S. INDUSTRIES LIMITED |




Annual Report June 30, 2018

(e
Aot
/ufju/,vu';,u?
At
otz
Wbty
Ayt
ey
U A sl G 11

oﬁ%cd}inu/}%fﬁfugﬁéﬁ;/?LJ'ﬁ'&gﬁfa’/?LJW’;&JUW@ J{Q/;J_UL/C;,/KL ijLJ{LLX
- y’d/twugug. Kuﬁ"..}d/ %Y} K/}logﬂﬂ

. LT

Ifa3

Lnf%ZODquOL&QSTJ S S T 1 L L8 Pt £ U508 GBI s A8 T
ﬁgd/gj/la’»d/L/g/?”ugufﬁiK’?/)’/.l:ng’./g)@"@}’/./UL?/J/:‘J/":.H/%&LJVJLLD

Fast

~ “&/‘:d[’/’J’5g/ﬂ/}1+&¢d)w@‘$[¢57uﬁﬁu(0u}u@L}LJ";,QCJ{.QK
e
ij/'fl&ig«t‘?

w2
Mgt

B L 8T et L 720180230 Ko 2L Gt bl o KA L oo 35 Loty Ho £ Lol S
<d/.."ﬂ70ﬂ{¢/ﬁfl’d3;&7 i?a/}/}?%/ﬁiol/,/é.‘.«ﬂyb:/.".’liftgb%;ufu’ﬂ?' ix

| 57 | D.S. INDUSTRIES LIMITED




Annual Report June 30, 2018

Jﬂ;lr,.bgl:o Kﬂfq;{;b/

UEU:J'?JJU;’r—?uLU%!’Z‘:/g/K

e 3 PSSP G b 5L i3 il EIS ST 015 A SIS P e K S 2 S aB G301
e SRS e s by 7 L3S &5~?A»'+u(f~pd/ob5)fd/

0t LS sband kit S s SBE L AT L S Qs S e SHSAESE 21
b ppma Pl E 2

Ut By s o FL B SIIAL Pty Bt Sl 23

e VYO IS e J S p e B30 M It o L S lodl -4

_LQJ@J &f,uﬁ%;?i_ //“?qu,vc‘_(? Jq%(wjid;}'( Bl _5

NP PRIE BT X4 61 760.318F ?J/L"J&fﬁniy/ﬁb/.uwﬁu‘)l}K%uu.’il’75.782'¢d~{;)lw£dl/ -6
C;Jfbg//'fj/.k%/w}’ﬂt'_%éﬁégoﬁu:g/gL"L/d/%Jy&&’JJg}Vd_Q?{/DQJ%UU:L268.551Lujb”o}ﬁfé’ugbi
e eI A L e PR S f i)

el A e FaS PO e ORI L P o KRG

o dnduig =S s

o

AL L §s e N TP SET S L /,lﬂ@iguafﬁéuﬁu@gﬂﬁ&weuiiéwwwqmg A
e e B SRS e s

S
K7as
K
y"?/?l.ng 42018315 :fout um )

| 58 | D.S. INDUSTRIES LIMITED




Annual Report June 30, 2018

FORM OF PROXY
Annual General Meeting

The Company Secretary
D S Industries Limited
20-K, Gulberg II,
Lahore.

Dear Sir,

I/We of (full address) being a
member(s) of Pervez Ahmed Securities Limited holding Ordinary Shares as per Registered Folio No.
/ CDC A/c No hereby appoint Mr./ Mrs./ Miss
of (full address) or failing
him / her Mr./ Mrs./ Miss of (full address)
being member of the Company as my/our Proxy to attend, act
and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on  October
27,2018

Signed this

Witnesses:

Signature

Five
Rupees
Address Revenue
Stamp

Name

CNIC No./ Passport No.

Signature should be agreed with the
Specimen  Signatures with the
Company

A member entitled to attend and vote at the  Annual General Meeting of the Company is enti tled to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his constituted
attorney or if such appointer is a corporation or company under the common seal of such corporation or
company.

In case of individual, the account holder or sub -account holder and / or the person whose securities are in
group account shall submit the Proxy form along with following documents:
a. The Proxy form shall be witnessed by the two per  sons whose names, addresses and CNIC number
shall be mentioned on the form.
b. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the  Proxy shall be furnished with
the Proxy form.
The Proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original p assport at the time of the meeting.
In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted along with Proxy form to the company.

4. The Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited w  ith the Company Secretary of D S Industries Limited,
20 — K Gulberg II Lahore not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.
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